
City Council Meeting Agenda 
November 26, 2019 

Page 1 of 2 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, November 26, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor 
Marion Grayson. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Library Services Kim Kroll. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Bruce Lovesmith, Associate Pastor of 
Fellowship Baptist Church. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

Miscellaneous 

3. Consider minutes of previous meetings:

A. November 12, 2019, City Council/Planning and Zoning Commission Joint
Workshop Meeting;



City Council Meeting Agenda 
November 26, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

B. November 12, 2019, City Council Meeting. 
 
4. Hold a public hearing and consider a resolution supporting the City’s grant 

application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for the development of 
Heritage Park at the Leon River. 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 

5. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Office-2 District with a 
Specific Use Permit for a Bail Bonds Business to Retail Zoning District on property 
located at 609 E. 6th Avenue, on the north side of 6th Avenue, east of Waco Road. 

 
 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 
 
 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
November 26, 2019 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, November 26, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor 
Marion Grayson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Library Services Kim Kroll. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Bruce Lovesmith, Associate Pastor of 
Fellowship Baptist Church. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
3. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. November 12, 2019, City Council/Planning and Zoning Commission Joint 

Workshop Meeting; 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
November 26, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

B. November 12, 2019, City Council Meeting. 
 

Copies of the minutes are attached. Recommend approval. 
 
4. Hold a public hearing and consider a resolution supporting the City’s grant 

application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for the development of 
Heritage Park at the Leon River. 
 
See Staff Report from Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Bob van Til. 
Recommend holding the public hearing followed by adoption of the resolution 
authorizing the grant application for the Heritage Park Expansion as presented. 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 

5. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Office-2 District with 
a Specific Use Permit for a Bail Bonds Business to Retail Zoning District on 
property located at 609 E. 6th Avenue, on the north side of 6th Avenue, east of 
Waco Road. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on 
November 19, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval 
of this zoning change, and Staff concurs in their recommendation. 

 



Belton City Council/Planning and Zoning Commission 
Joint Workshop Meeting 

November 12, 2019 – 4:00 P.M. 
 
The Belton City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission met in a joint 
workshop session in the Kinchion Room at the Harris Community Center with the 
following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter 
and Councilmembers David K. Leigh, John R. Holmes, Sr., Craig Pearson, Guy 
O’Banion and Dan Kirkley. Planning and Zoning Commission Members present include: 
Chair Brett Baggerly, Vice Chair Dave Covington and Commission Members Zachary 
Krueger, Luke Potts, Ty Hendrick, David Jarratt and Allison Turner. Planning and 
Zoning Commission Members Quinton Locklin and Stephanie O’Banion were absent. 
Staff present included Sam Listi, Gene Ellis, Amy Casey, Susan Allamon, Chris Brown, 
Angellia Points, Wes Gilbreath, Jeff Booker, Cynthia Hernandez, Judy Garrett and Kim 
Kroll. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Grayson called the Council meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. and 

Chair Brett Baggerly called the Planning and Zoning Commission to order at 4:00 
p.m 

 
2. Receive a presentation and discuss possible amendments to various sections 

of the Subdivision Ordinance related to sidewalks, street standards/improve-
ments, parkland dedication, fire protection, and administrative plats. (Audio 
0:09) 

 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell presented Exhibit “A.” 
 
Commissioner Potts presented two areas which he feels need to be changed or 
addressed: 
 
(1)  Perimeter street improvements should be proportional to the impact of the 

development. 
(2)  Sidewalks should not be required on both sides of a collector street. 

 
City Manager Sam Listi discussed the possibility of impact fees as an alternative to 
perimeter street improvements. 
 
Councilmember Kirkley requested Staff provide for a variance appeal process. 
Councilmember O’Banion agreed. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion said he is a little disappointed that more solutions haven’t 
been proposed for the sidewalk issue after Council has said it needs to be 
addressed. He said Staff is proposing to basically change nothing although the 
Planning and Zoning Commission disagrees. He said nothing has been proposed for 
change, although Staff has received input from several interest groups. 
 



Belton City Council/Planning and Zoning Commission 
Joint Workshop Meeting 
November 12, 2019 – Page 2 
 

  

Mr. O’Banion said he does not think sidewalks should be required in the Business 
Park. Councilmember Leigh said that some of the “industrial park” areas are more 
mixed use, so sometimes sidewalks should be required. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion added that perhaps the City should review the definition of 
a collector street to determine when sidewalks should be required. 
 
Councilmember Pearson said the Thoroughfare Plan needs to be updated to a Multi-
Modal Plan. 
 
Commissioner Covington said the Planning and Zoning Commission has regularly 
come to the consensus that sidewalks should not be required on both sides of minor 
collector streets. City Manager Sam Listi said that the Thoroughfare Plan should be 
reviewed to ensure that minor collector streets are identified correctly. 
 
Commissioner Covington recommended that the parkland requirement be left at a 
minimum of two acres. 

 
3. Adjourn. Chair Baggerly adjourned the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting 

at 5:14 p.m. and Mayor Grayson adjourned the Council meeting at 5:14 p.m. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 



·-
u

bD 
C
::J en 

C 0 = 
a. ·- u C
0 

C 
� 

..c 
0 � I 

v, N � !Iii: ·-
� 

-c Ul � 
El 

� E 
C 

0 � Ei

s 
·-

bD e: iC 

C 0 
= 

...., C 
C 

·- ·-

C V, E ·-
V,

0 C 0·- ·-
E ca a,,·-

!:;1! 
a. E

·-
-a 

0 .c 

u 
:l 

V)

EXHIBIT "A"



W
or

ks
ho

p 
O

ut
lin

e:


D

is
cu

ss
 p

ro
po

se
d 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
si

de
w

al
k 

po
lic

y


O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f o
th

er
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
:


Pe

rim
et

er
 S

tre
et

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts


Pa

rk
la

nd
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t


Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n


Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ap

pr
ov

al


Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 w
he

n 
P&

ZC
/C

C
 re

vi
ew

 s
ite

 p
la

ns



B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

•
Si

de
w

al
k

St
an

da
rd

s
an

d
Po

lic
y,

Se
ct

io
n

50
3,

ap
pr

ov
ed

in
20

15
--3

ye
ar

su
ns

et
re

vi
ew

un
de

rw
ay

.

•
Al

so
lo

ok
in

g
at

St
re

et
St

an
da

rd
s

an
d

Po
lic

y
(S

ec
tio

n
50

2)
an

d
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

fo
r

Pa
rk

la
nd

(S
ec

tio
n

51
7)

.

•
Pl

at
s

ap
pr

ov
ed

du
rin

g
FY

20
16

–
FY

20
18

re
vi

ew
ed

to
de

te
rm

in
e

w
he

n
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
fo

r
si

de
w

al
ks

,p
er

im
et

er
st

re
et

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

(P
SI

),
an

d
pa

rk
la

nd
de

di
ca

tio
n/

fe
es

w
er

e
ap

pl
ie

d
or

w
ai

ve
d

by
va

ria
nc

e.



B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

•
M

os
t

va
ria

nc
es

re
la

te
d

to
re

pl
at

s
or

to
pl

at
s

in
ET

J.

•
G

oa
l o

f R
ev

ie
w

: S
im

pl
ify

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 o

f 
pl

at
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 th
os

e 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

qu
al

ify
 fo

r a
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 to
 b

e 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
el

y 
ev

en
 w

ith
 

va
ria

nc
e 

re
qu

es
t. 

30
4.

01
El

ig
ib

le
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e

M
in

or
Pl

at
1.

in
vo

lv
e

fo
ur

(4
)o

rf
ew

er
lo

ts
;

2.
fro

nt
on

to
an

ex
is

tin
g

st
re

et
,a

nd
;

3.
do

no
tr

eq
ui

re
th

e
cr

ea
tio

n
of

an
y

ne
w

st
re

et
or

th
e

ex
te

ns
io

n
of

m
un

ic
ip

al
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.



B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

•
St

af
fp

ro
po

se
d

ch
an

ge
s

to
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n
O

rd
in

an
ce

se
ct

io
ns

an
d

se
nt

to
TA

BA
fo

rr
ev

ie
w

in
Ja

nu
ar

y/
Fe

br
ua

ry
.

•
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rm
ee

tin
g

he
ld

Ap
ril

16
th

.

•
Pu

bl
ic

he
ar

in
g

he
ld

at
P&

ZC
m

ee
tin

g
Ju

ne
18

th
.

•
Pu

bl
ic

he
ar

in
g

he
ld

at
P&

ZC
m

ee
tin

g
Ju

ly
16

th
—

Ite
m

ta
bl

ed
du

e
to

co
nc

er
ns

w
ith

si
de

w
al

k
po

lic
y.

•
Jo

in
t

w
or

ks
ho

p
w

ith
P&

ZC
/C

C
sc

he
du

le
d—

Pr
im

ar
y

di
sc

us
si

on
fo

cu
se

d
on

si
de

w
al

k
po

lic
y.

•
At

ta
ch

ed
in

pu
t

fro
m

TA
BA

,
BE

D
C

(C
yn

th
ia

H
er

na
nd

ez
),

an
d

P&
ZC

M
em

be
rL

uk
e

Po
tts

.



Si
de

w
al

ks
 o

n 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f c

ol
le

ct
or

 a
nd

 a
rte

ria
l s

tre
et

s.
 


C

ol
le

ct
or

 s
tre

et
s 

an
d 

ar
te

ria
l s

tre
et

s 
ca

rry
 a

 la
rg

er
 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 tr

af
fic

 a
t a

 h
ig

he
r r

at
e 

of
 s

pe
ed

. 


Fo

r p
ed

es
tri

an
 s

af
et

y,
 s

id
ew

al
ks

 n
ee

de
d 

on
 b

ot
h 

si
de

s 
of

 th
es

e 
st

re
et

s.
 


If 

on
ly

 o
n 

on
e 

si
de

, p
ed

es
tri

an
s 

fo
rc

ed
 to

 c
ro

ss
 m

id
 

bl
oc

k 
or

 w
al

k 
on

 u
ni

m
pr

ov
ed

 s
ur

fa
ce

 o
r r

oa
dw

ay
. 

D
iff

ic
ul

ty
 fo

r w
he

el
ch

ai
r b

ou
nd

.

D
is

cu
ss

io
n/

Pu
rp

os
e

of
C

ur
re

nt
St

an
da

rd



Si
de

w
al

ks
 in

 In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
—

Sa
fe

ty
  C

on
ce

rn
s.

 


Si
de

w
al

ks
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

af
e 

ro
ut

e 
fo

r i
nt

er
na

l p
ed

es
tri

an
 tr

af
fic

. 


Si
de

w
al

ks
 in

 in
du

st
ria

l a
re

as
 w

ill 
no

t g
en

er
at

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
tra

ffi
c,

 b
ut

 ta
ke

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

tra
ffi

c 
of

f 
bu

sy
 ro

ad
w

ay
s.

 


Si
de

w
al

ks
 a

lo
ng

 b
ot

h 
si

de
s 

of
 a

rte
ria

l a
nd

 c
ol

le
ct

or
 

st
re

et
s,

 e
ve

n 
in

 in
du

st
ria

l a
re

as
, a

pp
ea

rs
 to

 h
av

e 
m

er
it.

 


Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

of
f-r

oa
d 

hi
ke

/b
ik

e 
ro

ut
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 
in

du
st

ria
l p

ar
k;

 m
ay

 b
e 

ev
al

ua
te

d 
w

ith
 s

ub
di

vi
si

on
 p

la
t. 

Si
de

w
al

ks
 in

 In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
—

Se
cu

rit
y 

C
on

ce
rn

s.


Pe
de

st
ria

n 
tra

ffi
c 

on
 s

id
ew

al
k 

is
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 p

os
e 

a 
se

cu
rit

y 
th

re
at

 to
 th

e 
in

du
st

ry
’s

 p
ro

pe
rty

.

D
is

cu
ss

io
n/

Pu
rp

os
e

of
C

ur
re

nt
St

an
da

rd



Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife


Be
lto

n’
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 V

is
io

n:
 B

e 
th

e 
“c

om
m

un
ity

 o
f 

ch
oi

ce
 in

 C
en

tra
l T

ex
as

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

n 
ex

ce
pt

io
na

l 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
.” 

 


C
ity

’s
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 im
po

rta
nt

 in
 b

al
an

ci
ng

 
co

st
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

.

D
is

cu
ss

io
n/

Pu
rp

os
e

of
C

ur
re

nt
St

an
da

rd

In
cr

ea
se

d 
co

st
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 s

id
ew

al
ks

.


Si
de

w
al

k 
co

st
 m

od
es

t w
he

n 
al

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
os

ts
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
.


Si

de
w

al
k 

co
st

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 e

st
im

at
ed

 a
t $

54
/s

q.
 y

d.
 =

 
$3

,0
00

 fo
r 5

’ w
id

e 
si

de
w

al
k 

on
 1

00
’ f

ro
nt

ag
e.

 



Pr
op

os
ed

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

:S
ec

tio
n

50
3-

Si
de

w
al

k
St

an
da

rd
s

C
ur

re
nt

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
:

Si
de

w
al

ks
re

qu
ire

d
al

on
g

bo
th

si
de

s
of

co
lle

ct
or

an
d

ar
te

ria
l

st
re

et
s

-
no

t
re

qu
ire

d
al

on
g

lo
ca

l
st

re
et

s
un

le
ss

st
re

et
is

ad
ja

ce
nt

to
a

sc
ho

ol
;

no
t

re
qu

ire
d

fo
r

st
re

et
s

w
ith

re
si

de
nt

ia
l

fro
nt

ag
e.

D
ev

el
op

er
re

qu
ire

d
to

in
st

al
ls

id
ew

al
ks

al
on

g
st

re
et

s
th

at
do

no
t

ha
ve

dr
iv

ew
ay

ac
ce

ss
;

si
de

w
al

k
re

qu
ire

m
en

t
m

ay
be

de
fe

rre
d

to
th

e
bu

ild
er

fo
rs

tre
et

s
th

at
ha

ve
dr

iv
ew

ay
ac

ce
ss

.

P
ro

po
se

d
C

ha
ng

es
:

•
N

o
m

aj
or

ch
an

ge
s

pr
op

os
ed

;s
ec

tio
ns

re
w

or
de

d
fo

rc
la

rit
y.

•
Fo

r
pr

op
er

ty
be

in
g

pl
at

te
d,

th
e

si
de

w
al

k
re

qu
ire

m
en

t
m

ay
be

de
fe

rre
d

to
bu

ild
er

,p
ro

vi
de

d
th

is
is

no
te

d
on

th
e

pl
at

.
•

Va
ria

nc
es

av
ai

la
bl

e
if

w
ar

ra
nt

ed
.

•
St

af
f

m
ay

w
ai

ve
si

de
w

al
k

re
qu

ire
m

en
t

fo
r

pl
at

s
in

th
e

ET
J

an
d

fo
rp

la
ts

qu
al

ify
in

g
fo

ra
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

ap
pr

ov
al

.



O
TH

ER
A

M
EN

D
M

EN
TS

Se
ct

io
n

50
2:

St
re

et
St

an
da

rd
s

an
d

Po
lic

y

C
ur

re
nt

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
:

Pe
rim

et
er

st
re

et
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
(P

SI
)

re
qu

ire
d

al
on

g
un

im
pr

ov
ed

st
re

et
s,

ex
cl

ud
in

g
St

at
e

or
Fe

de
ra

l
hi

gh
w

ay
s

–
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

/o
w

ne
rs

be
ar

ha
lf

th
e

to
ta

l
co

st
of

pa
vi

ng
(u

p
to

18
.5

fe
et

w
id

th
)a

nd
in

st
al

lin
g

cu
rb

an
d

gu
tte

r.

P
ro

po
se

d
C

ha
ng

es
:

•
R

ef
er

en
ce

to
“P

la
nn

in
g

&
Zo

ni
ng

C
om

m
is

si
on

”
re

pl
ac

ed
w

ith
“C

ity
C

ou
nc

il”
.

•
D

el
et

e
“S

tre
et

D
es

ig
n

St
an

da
rd

s”
ta

bl
e.

R
ep

la
ce

w
ith

re
fe

re
nc

e
to

C
ity

’s
D

es
ig

n
M

an
ua

la
nd

Th
or

ou
gh

fa
re

Pl
an

.
•

C
la

rif
y

th
e

te
rm

“u
ni

m
pr

ov
ed

st
re

et
”.

•
D

is
cr

et
io

n
gi

ve
n

to
St

af
ft

o
de

te
rm

in
e

w
he

n
PS

Ia
re

ne
ed

ed
.

•
St

af
fm

ay
ap

pr
ov

e
va

ria
nc

e
to

PS
Ir

eq
ui

re
m

en
tf

or
pl

at
s

th
at

ot
he

rw
is

e
qu

al
ify

fo
ra

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
ap

pr
ov

al
.



Se
ct

io
n

51
7:

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
fo

rP
ar

kl
an

d

C
ur

re
nt

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
:

Pa
rk

la
nd

de
di

ca
tio

n
re

qu
ire

d
fo

r
ne

w
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
su

bd
iv

is
io

ns
in

an
am

ou
nt

eq
ua

lt
o

1
ac

re
/1

00
ne

w
dw

el
lin

g
un

its
.M

in
im

um
la

nd
de

di
ca

tio
n

is
2

ac
re

s.
Fe

e
m

ay
be

pa
id

in
lie

u
of

la
nd

de
di

ca
tio

n
at

ra
te

of
$2

00
/d

w
el

lin
g

un
it.

P
ro

po
se

d
C

ha
ng

es
:

•
N

o
ch

an
ge

pr
op

os
ed

to
fe

e/
la

nd
de

di
ca

tio
n.

•
H

ow
ev

er
,

w
he

n
sc

al
e

of
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
re

qu
ire

s
it,

re
co

m
m

en
d

ac
ce

pt
in

g
pa

rk
si

te
no

sm
al

le
r

th
an

3
ac

re
s

(c
ur

re
nt

ly
2

ac
re

s)
.

•
St

af
f

m
ay

ap
pr

ov
e

va
ria

nc
e

to
th

e
pa

rk
la

nd
/fe

e
re

qu
ire

m
en

t
fo

r
pl

at
s

th
at

ot
he

rw
is

e
qu

al
ify

fo
r

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

ap
pr

ov
al

.



Fi
re

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n:

•
ET

J
pl

at
s

fre
qu

en
tly

lo
ca

te
d

ou
ts

id
e

C
ity

’s
w

at
er

C
C

N
,a

nd
w

at
er

pr
es

su
re

/fl
ow

fo
r

fir
e

pr
ot

ec
tio

n
fre

qu
en

tly
be

lo
w

1,
00

0
gp

m
,

w
hi

ch
is

m
in

im
um

flo
w

re
qu

ire
d

by
C

ity
’s

fir
e

co
de

.

•
Fo

llo
w

in
g

am
en

dm
en

ts
pr

op
os

ed
to

ad
dr

es
s

fir
e

pr
ot

ec
tio

n
in

ET
J

an
d

al
lo

w
st

af
ft

o
ap

pr
ov

e
pl

at
s

in
ET

J
th

at
w

ou
ld

ot
he

rw
is

e
qu

al
ify

fo
r

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
ap

pr
ov

al
.



Se
ct

io
n

40
3:

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
Pl

an
s

fo
rS

ub
di

vi
si

on
s

in
C

ity
’s

ET
J

A
re

as
P

ro
po

se
d

C
ha

ng
es

:
St

af
f

m
ay

w
ai

ve
re

qu
ire

m
en

t
fo

r
fir

e
pr

ot
ec

tio
n

(1
,0

00
gp

m
flo

w
)

fo
r

pl
at

s
in

ET
J

th
at

ot
he

rw
is

e
qu

al
ify

fo
ra

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e

ap
pr

ov
al

.

Se
ct

io
n

50
5:

W
at

er
an

d
Se

w
er

U
til

iti
es

St
an

da
rd

s
P

ro
po

se
d

C
ha

ng
es

:
St

af
f

m
ay

w
ai

ve
re

qu
ire

m
en

t
fo

r
fir

e
pr

ot
ec

tio
n

(1
,0

00
gp

m
flo

w
)

fo
r

pl
at

s
in

ET
J

th
at

ot
he

rw
is

e
qu

al
ify

fo
ra

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e

ap
pr

ov
al

.

Se
ct

io
n

51
4:

Fi
re

La
ne

s
P

ro
po

se
d

C
ha

ng
es

:
C

la
rif

y
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
fo

r
fir

e
la

ne
s

to
re

fe
re

nc
e

ad
op

te
d

Fi
re

C
od

e.
St

af
fm

ay
w

ai
ve

re
qu

ire
m

en
tf

or
fir

e
la

ne
s

fo
r

pl
at

s
in

ET
J

th
at

ot
he

rw
is

e
qu

al
ify

fo
r

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
ap

pr
ov

al
.



Se
ct

io
n

30
4:

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

Pl
at

A
pp

ro
va

ls
30

4.
01

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
M

in
or

Pl
at

(A
m

en
dm

en
t2

00
3-

12
)

A.
In

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

ith
th

e
Te

xa
s

Lo
ca

l
G

ov
er

nm
en

t
C

od
e,

Se
ct

io
n

21
2.

00
65

,t
he

C
ity

of
Be

lto
n

de
le

ga
te

s
to

th
e

C
ity

M
an

ag
er

or
hi

s
de

si
gn

ee
th

e
au

th
or

ity
to

ap
pr

ov
e

m
in

or
pl

at
s

an
d

am
en

dm
en

ts
to

m
in

or
pl

at
s,

in
cl

ud
in

g
re

pl
at

s
th

at
re

du
ce

th
e

nu
m

be
ro

fl
ot

s,
w

hi
ch

:
1.

in
vo

lv
e

fo
ur

(4
)o

rf
ew

er
lo

ts
,a

nd
;

2.
fro

nt
on

to
an

ex
is

tin
g

st
re

et
,a

nd
;

3.
do

no
t

re
qu

ire
th

e
cr

ea
tio

n
of

an
y

ne
w

st
re

et
or

th
e

ex
te

ns
io

n
of

m
un

ic
ip

al
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

Se
ct

io
n

30
4:

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

Pl
at

A
pp

ro
va

ls

P
ro

po
se

d
C

ha
ng

es
:

C
la

rif
y

re
pl

at
s

re
du

ci
ng

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
lo

ts
ar

e
el

ig
ib

le
fo

ra
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e
pl

at
ap

pr
ov

al
.




D

et
ai

le
d 

si
te

 p
la

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
w

ith
 S

U
P 

or
 P

D
 z

on
in

g.


St

ra
ig

ht
 re

zo
ni

ng
 a

nd
 p

la
t r

ev
ie

w
s 

do
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

 a
 

si
te

 p
la

n,
 b

ut
 re

ly
 o

n 
ad

op
te

d 
st

an
da

rd
s.


H

el
pf

ul
 if

 c
on

ce
pt

ua
l s

ite
 p

la
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

, s
o 

st
af

f 
ca

n 
id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

ss
ue

s,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d.


C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d.


Le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
on

 re
qu

ire
d 

ex
te

rio
r b

ui
ld

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

l (
90

%
 m

as
on

ry
) s

til
l b

ei
ng

 e
va

lu
at

ed
.

Si
te

 P
la

n 
R

ev
ie

w
s 

by
 P

&
ZC

/C
C




Ad

di
tio

na
l f

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
fo

r A
dm

in
 a

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 p

la
ts

 in
 

th
e 

ET
J.


Pa

rk
la

nd
 d

ed
ic

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t –
no

 le
ss

 th
an

 3
 

ac
re

s.


Si

de
w

al
k 

St
an

da
rd

s


Si
de

w
al

ks
 o

n 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f c

ol
le

ct
or

/a
rt

er
ia

l 
st

re
et

s


Si
de

w
al

ks
 a

lo
ng

 c
ol

le
ct

or
/a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

ts
 in

 
in

du
st

ria
l a

re
as

In
pu

t b
y 

P&
ZC

/C
C

 D
es

ire
d 

on
 F

ol
lo

w
in

g:



Ar
te

ria
ls

•
Lo

op
 1

21
•

La
ke

 R
d/

FM
 4

39
•

Ho
lla

nd
 R

d/
FM

 4
36

•
6th

&
 2

nd
Av

e/
FM

 9
3

•
M

ai
n 

St
/S

H 
31

7
•

W
ac

o 
Rd

•
FM

 1
67

0 
(m

in
or

)
•

L2
LR

 (m
in

or
)

M
aj

or
 C

ol
le

ct
or

s
•

Sp
ar

ta
 R

d
•

In
du

st
ria

l 
•

13
th

Av
e

•
Co

nn
el

l
•

Av
e 

O
•

Hu
ey

•
W

he
at

 R
d

M
in

or
 C

ol
le

ct
or

s
•

M
LK

•
Be

al
•

Pe
ne

lo
pe

•
W

al
l S

t
•

La
ila

 L
n

•
SW

 P
ar

kw
ay

•
24

/2
2 

Av
e

•
Co

m
m

er
ce

•
Di

gb
y/

Po
w

el
l

•
Ch

ish
ol

m
 T

rP
kw

y



Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 In

fo
Pe

rim
et

er
 S

tr
ee

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

t
Le

ga
lit

y 
Q

ue
st

io
n



Pe
rim

et
er

St
re

et
Im

pr
ov

em
en

tR
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

•
Q

ue
st

io
n

ra
is

ed
ab

ou
t

le
ga

lit
y

fo
r

C
ity

to
im

po
se

pe
rim

et
er

st
re

et
im

pr
ov

em
en

tr
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.

•
R

ev
ie

w
ed

cu
rre

nt
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
w

ith
C

O
B’

s
Le

ga
l

St
af

f,
an

d
co

ns
en

su
s

by
Jo

hn
M

es
se

r
an

d
N

ea
le

Po
tts

is
th

e
C

ity
’s

O
rd

in
an

ce
is

va
lid

.
•

C
ity

’s
ha

ve
so

ug
ht

to
es

ta
bl

is
h

w
ay

s
to

pa
y

fo
r

th
e

im
pa

ct
of

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

Pe
rim

et
er

St
re

et
Im

pr
ov

e-
m

en
t

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
ha

ve
be

en
us

ed
in

Be
lto

n
to

ad
dr

es
s

ad
ja

ce
nt

st
re

et
im

pr
ov

em
en

t
co

st
s

re
su

lti
ng

fro
m

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

•
Va

rio
us

C
ou

rts
ha

ve
ad

dr
es

se
d

th
is

is
su

e
an

d
th

ei
r

ev
al

ua
tio

n
ha

s
be

en
,

by
ne

ce
ss

ity
,

on
th

e
fa

ct
s

of
ea

ch
ca

se
.



Pe
rim

et
er

St
re

et
Im

pr
ov

em
en

tR
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
(C

on
t.)

•
Th

e
Te

xa
s

St
at

e
Le

gi
sl

at
ur

e
ha

s
ad

dr
es

se
d

th
e

is
su

e
by

pr
es

cr
ib

in
g

st
an

da
rd

s
fo

rI
m

pa
ct

Fe
es

–
a

m
ea

ns
to

co
st

sh
ar

e
of

fs
ite

pu
bl

ic
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
(s

ew
er

pl
an

t,
ar

te
ria

ls
tre

et
s)

.

•
Th

e
U

.S
.S

up
re

m
e

C
ou

rt
al

so
w

ei
gh

ed
in

on
is

su
e

of
fa

irn
es

s.
St

re
et

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
m

us
tb

e
re

la
te

d
to

th
e

bu
rd

en
to

th
e

C
ity

re
su

lti
ng

fro
m

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

Tw
o-

pr
on

ge
d

te
st

:

1.
“N

ex
us

”-
re

as
on

ab
le

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p

2.
“P

ro
po

rti
on

al
ity

”r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p
-f

ai
rn

es
s



Pe
rim

et
er

St
re

et
Im

pr
ov

em
en

tR
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
(C

on
t.)

•
“T

he
re

qu
ire

m
en

t
to

co
ns

tru
ct

of
f

si
te

pu
bl

ic
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
is

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
on

ly
w

he
n

an
in

di
vi

du
al

-
iz

ed
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n

ha
s

be
en

m
ad

e
as

to
th

e
im

pa
ct

of
th

e
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t,
an

d
th

e
la

nd
ow

ne
r

is
as

se
ss

ed
its

pr
op

or
tio

na
l

sh
ar

e”
.

(F
lo

w
er

M
ou

nd
vs

.
St

af
fo

rd
Es

ta
te

s)

•
W

e
re

co
m

m
en

d,
an

d
P&

ZC
/C

ou
nc

il
of

te
n

gr
an

t,
va

ria
nc

es
,

an
d

ca
n

ag
ai

n
in

fu
tu

re
if

on
e

or
bo

th
of

te
st

s
–

ne
xu

s
or

pr
op

or
tio

na
lit

y
no

tm
et

.

•
St

af
f

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

w
ou

ld
be

to
re

ta
in

cu
rre

nt
la

ng
ua

ge
in

O
rd

in
an

ce
.E

lim
in

at
in

g
re

qu
ire

m
en

tw
ou

ld
sh

ift
en

tir
e

co
st

bu
rd

en
to

ge
ne

ra
l

pu
bl

ic
ra

is
in

g
co

nc
er

ns
of

fa
irn

es
s

an
d

st
ra

in
in

g
C

ity
bu

dg
et

.



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 12, 2019 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter and Councilmembers David K. Leigh, John R. Holmes, Sr., 
Craig Pearson, Guy O’Banion and Dan Kirkley. Staff present included Sam Listi, Gene 
Ellis, John Messer, Amy Casey, Susan Allamon, Charlotte Walker, Cheryl Maxwell, Matt 
Bates, Chris Brown, Angellia Points, Wes Gilbreath, Cynthia Hernandez, Judy Garrett 
and Kim Kroll. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember John R. Holmes, 
Sr., and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Director of Public Works 
Angellia Points. The Invocation was given by Councilmember Leigh. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 1:55)  
 

Woody Durbin, 308 E. 20th Avenue, told the Council about a disc golf tournament 
that will be coming to the Belton and Temple area in March 2020. 

 
3. Recognize Court Clerk LaCretia Van de Plas for obtaining her Level III Court 

Clerk certification. (Audio 3:20) 
 
Consent Agenda (Audio 8:24) 
 
Items 4-7 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of October 22, 2019, City Council meeting. 
 
5. Consider a resolution appointing Barry Harper to the Tax Appraisal District 

Board of Directors. 
 
6. Consider Appointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 
 

A. Library Board of Directors – Janice Pustka 
B. Belton Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors – Steve 

Jones and Brandon Bozon 
 
7. Confirm appointment of Interim Fire Chief Wesley Gilbreath. 
 
Upon a motion for approval of the Consent Agenda by Councilmember Kirkley, and a 
second by Councilmember Holmes, Consent Agenda Items 4-7 were unanimously 
approved by a vote of 7-0. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 12, 2019 – Page 2 
 

  

Miscellaneous 
 
8. Hold a public hearing and consider a tax abatement agreement request by 

Todd Mantz, on property owned by CSC Group, LP, located in Tax Abatement 
Reinvestment Zone Number 13, on the east side of IH 35, South of Loop 121, 
along Grove Road, to build a 50,000 square foot warehouse at an estimated 
cost of $1,750,000 (206 E. Grove Road). (Audio 9:33) 

 
Public Hearing:  
 

• Todd Mantz, applicant, spoke in favor of the tax abatement agreement. 
 

• Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director of the Belton Economic Development 
Corporation, spoke in favor of the tax abatement agreement. 

 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter, and a second by Councilmember 
Kirkey, the tax abatement agreement with Todd Mantz was unanimously approved 
upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

9. Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance amending Chapter 22, Article 
VI, Section 22-106, Schedule A of the Code of Ordinances regarding traffic 
schedules and speed limit regulations. (Audio 23:15) 
 
Public Hearing: no one spoke for or against. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by Councilmember 
O’Banion, the following captioned ordinance was unanimously approved upon a vote 
of 7-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-53 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 22, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 22 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, AMENDING SCHEDULE A REGARDING TRAFFIC CONTROL 
SIGNS IN CITY STREETS; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES TO THE EXTENT 
THEY ARE IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

10. Consider an ordinance reducing the speed limit from 75 MPH to 65 MPH on 
US190/IH-14 in Belton City Limits during construction of the US190/IH-14 
Widening Project. (Audio 25:54) 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by Councilmember 
Pearson, the following captioned ordinance was unanimously approved upon a vote 
of 7-0. 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 12, 2019 – Page 3 
 

  

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-54 
 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE RATE AND SPEED OF MOTOR VEHICLES 
ON US190/IH-14; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 
11. Consider an ordinance: (Audio 29:34) 
 

A. amending Sec. 8-71 and Sec. 8-72 of the City of Belton Fee and Rate 
Schedule related to solid waste collection rates for 2020. 

 
B. adding Sec. 12-1 to the City of Belton Fee and Rate Schedule related to the 

registration and inspection of mobile home parks. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Councilmember Pearson, 
the following captioned ordinance was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  2019-55 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FEE SCHEDULE ESTABLISHING RATES 
AND FEES FOR CERTAIN ITEMS, SERVICES AND PERMITS PROVIDED FOR IN 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
12. Consider an ordinance authorizing an amendment to the FY2019 budget. 

(Audio 35:27) 
 

Upon a motion by Councilmember Pearson, and a second by Mayor Pro Tem 
Carpenter, the following captioned ordinance was approved upon a vote of 6-1 with 
Councilmember Holmes providing the dissenting vote. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-56 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE CITY OF BELTON 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2018, AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019. 

 
The Belton City Council will recess the Regular City Council Meeting and convene 
a meeting of the Belton Employee Benefits Trust. 

 
City of Belton Employee Benefits Trust Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order. (Audio 37:49) 
 

Chair Grayson called the meeting to order at 6:08 p.m. 
 

2. Consider minutes of the City of Belton Employee Benefits Trust meeting 
dated November 27, 2018. (Audio 38:03) 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 12, 2019 – Page 4 
 

  

Upon a motion for approval by Trustee Leigh, and a second by Trustee 
Carpenter, the minutes were unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

3. Consider action awarding contracts for employee insurance products. 
(Audio 38:35) 

 
Upon a motion for approval of the contracts by Trustee Kirkley, and a second by 
Trustee Carpenter, the contracts were unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

4. Adjourn. (Audio 48:58) Chair Grayson adjourned the meeting at 6:19 p.m. 
 
The Employee Benefits Trust will adjourn the City of Belton Employee Benefits 
Trust Meeting and reconvene the Belton City Council Meeting. 
 
13. Consider approval of funding for employee insurance contracts awarded by 

the Board of the Employee Benefits Trust, and authorizing the transfer of 
funds from the City’s operating funds to the Employee Benefits Trust account. 
(Audio 49:17) 

 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Kirkley, and a second by Mayor Pro 
Tem Carpenter, transfer of funding was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 

 
14. Receive a presentation and consider adopting the proposed Parks Master Plan 

for the expansion of Heritage Park. (Audio 50:05) 
 

Upon a motion for adoption by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by 
Councilmember O’Banion, the Parks Master Plan for the expansion of Heritage Park 
was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 

 
The City Council went into Executive Session at 6:56 p.m. for the following item: 
 
Executive Session 
 
15. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.074, Personnel Matter. 
 
The Mayor reopened the meeting at 7:05 p.m., and there being no further business, 
the meeting was adjourned. 

 
_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
November 26, 2019 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a resolution supporting the City’s grant application to the 
Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for the development of Heritage Park at the Leon 
River. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Bob van Til, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator. 
 
Summary Information 
 
The City Council adopted the Master Plan for Heritage Park at the Leon River on November 
12, 2019. This action identified Phase I of the Plan. Phase I is the focus of the grant 
application. 
 
The purpose of this Council Item is to conduct a public hearing and consider adopting a 
resolution approving the submittal of a grant application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Department for a $750,000 grant from the Local Parks Non-Urban Outdoor Recreation 
Grants Program. 
 
The public hearing is required because there are floodplains are on the property. The public 
hearing is intended to obtain input about the improvements proposed in the floodplains. The 
comments will be submitted along with the grant application. 
 
The proposed improvements in the floodplain include Park Lane, trails, retention ponds, 
floating river dock and fish camp, and a kayak launch, each of which will be developed in 
accordance with all applicable standards. 
 
The floodplain improvements in Phase I are Park Lane, the floating river dock and fish 
camp, and the kayak launch. The other items will be provided in future phases. 
 
The resolution designates the local official eligible to represent the City in all matters 
pertaining to this grant (City Manager); certifies that the City is eligible to apply for the grant; 
indicates that the City’s local match is readily available (satisfied with the property 
purchase); and affirms that the site will be dedicated as a permanent public park. 
 
Phase I of the project is estimated to cost $4.3 million, including Park Lane. Any funding 
expended over the $750,000 grant is considered an ‘over-match’ as far as the grant 
program is concerned. The over-match is budgeted in the Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone (TIRZ) Fund. 



City Council Agenda Item 
November 26, 2019 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
Funding Source(s):  The local match is the value of the parkland, which exceeds the 
required local match. 
 
Grant Amount: $750,000  
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No   Capital Project Funds 
 
Budget Comment: Over-match funds for the project are budgeted in the TIRZ fund for the 
next three years (2020- 2022). 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
 
   
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the resolution. 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 
Floodplain Map 
Site Plan – Phase I – Heritage Park at the Leon River   
Presentation 
 



PWD 1069B – P4000 (01/2014) 

Local Park Grant Program 
Resolution Authorizing Application    

 
 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Belton  as hereinafter referred to as “Applicant,” designating 
certain officials as being responsible for, acting for, and on behalf of the Applicant in dealing with the 
Texas Parks & Wildlife Department, hereinafter referred to as “Department,” for the purpose of 
participating in the Local Park Grant Program, hereinafter referred to as the “Program”; certifying that the 
Applicant is eligible to receive program assistance; certifying that the Applicant matching share is readily 
available; and dedicating the proposed site for permanent (or for the term of the lease for leased property) 
public park and recreational uses.  
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant is fully eligible to receive assistance under the Program; and   

WHEREAS, the Applicant is desirous of authorizing an official to represent and act for the Applicant in 
dealing with the Department concerning the Program;   

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE APPLICANT:   

 
SECTION 1: That the Applicant hereby certifies that they are eligible to receive assistance under the 

Program, and that notice of the application has been posted according to local public 
hearing requirements.   

 
SECTION 2: That the Applicant hereby certifies that the matching share for this application is readily 

available at this time.   
 
SECTION 3: That the Applicant hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to act for the Applicant 

in dealing with the Department for the purposes of the Program, and that City Manager is 
hereby officially designated as the representative in this regard. 

 
SECTION 4: The Applicant hereby specifically authorizes the official to make application to the 

Department concerning the site to be known as Belton's Heritage Park at the Leon River 
in the City of Belton  or use as a park site and is hereby dedicated (or will be dedicated 
upon completion of the proposed acquisition) for public park and recreation purposes in 
perpetuity (or for the lease term, if legal control is through a lease).  Projects with federal 
monies may have differing requirements.  

 
 
Introduced, read and passed by an affirmative vote of the “Applicant” on this  26th day of November, 
2019. 
 
 
 
Signature of Local Government Official 
 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Typed Name and Title 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Signature 
 
Michelle Garcia, TRMC, Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
Typed Name and Title 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Heritage Park 
at the Leon 

River 

 Heritage Park 

Floodplain areas 

Floodway 

Heritage Park at the Leon River, 
Belton Texas 

Heritage 
Park at the 
Leon River 





Texas Parks and Wildlife Grant Application



Floodplain

Floating River Dock

• Park Lane
• Retention 

Ponds
• Trails
• Kayak Dock
• Floating 

River Dock
• Fish Camp

Floodway

Fish Camp

Kayak Dock



Recommendations

Conduct the Public Hearing

Approve the Resolution



 
                                                                                                                           

City Council Agenda Item 
November 19, 2019 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item             
 
         
       Date:          November 26, 2019 
       Case No.:  Z-19-23 

Request:  Office - 2 with SUP for Bail 
Bonds to Retail District 

Applicant:  Gloria Jaimes  
Owner:  Michael & Kimberly McMahon 

 
Agenda Item #5 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Office-2 District with a Specific Use 
Permit for a Bail Bond Business to Retail Zoning District on property located at 609 E. 6th 
Avenue, on the north side of 6th Avenue, between Waco Road and Birdwell Street. 
 
Originating Department: Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning: O-2 with SUP for Bail Bonds Business           Proposed Zoning: Retail District
      
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Commercial Corridor Overlay 
 
Design Standards Type Area 7: Projected growth for this area is primarily commercial, mixed 
use developments and urban residential infill, focusing on compatible uses.  
 
Case Summary 
 
The applicant plans to lease this property and is requesting a zoning change to Retail District 
to allow development of a Mexican Taqueria Restaurant. An office building is currently located 
on this site. In 2012, this property was rezoned from Retail District to Office-2 District with a 
Specific Use Permit for a Bail Bond Business.  
 
The adjacent properties to the east and west are zoned Retail District with a commercial/retail 
building to the east, currently not in use, and an undeveloped tract to the west. The adjacent 
property to the north is zoned Single Family-2 District and is residentially developed. Belton 
ISD property is located across from this site on the south side of 6th Avenue and is zoned Multi 
Family District. The former administration office is located here and is used for training in the 
health science field. 
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
The proposed Retail Zoning District allows the following land uses: 
 

• Any use permitted in the Office -1, Office – 2, and Neighborhood Service Districts 
• Alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption  



 
                                                                                                                           

City Council Agenda Item 
November 19, 2019 

Page 2 of 2   
 

• Brewpub and winery 
• Clinic 
• Convenience store with gasoline sales 
• Gasoline or service station 
• Various retail stores: auto parts; bakery; clothing and apparel; furniture and appliances; 

discount, variety or department store; food or grocery store; hardware store, sporting 
goods, etc. 

• Laboratory with all operations conducted indoors and no residual waste products 
generated 

• Nursing home or residence home for aged 
• Nursery or plant sales 
• Pet shop 
• Restaurant or cafeteria 

 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
The applicant plans to convert the existing structure to a taqueria restaurant with drive-thru 
service, and limited on-site seating. No exterior expansion is proposed, only interior 
remodeling. This property was previously zoned Retail District, and the adjacent properties with 
6th Avenue frontage are currently zoned Retail District. The FLUM identifies this area with 6th 
Avenue frontage as a Commercial Corridor Overlay. The proposed Retail Zoning District is 
consistent with the FLUM and existing zoning in this vicinity, and appears to be reasonable in 
this location.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on November 19, 2019, and with a vote of 6 – 0, 
unanimously recommended approval of this zoning change from Office-2 District with SUP for 
Bail Bond Business to Retail District.  

 
Attachments 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Property owner list 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 

 



















Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, November 19, 2019 
 

 
Z-19-23   Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Office – 2 District with 
a Specific Use Permit for a Bail Bond Business to Retail Zoning District on property located 
at 609 E. 6th Avenue, on the north side of 6th Avenue, between Waco Road and Birdwell 
Street.  (Audio 1:07)  
 

Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report. (Exhibit A) 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing; with no one requesting to speak, the public hearing 
was closed.  
 
Mr. Hendrick made a motion to approve Z-19-23, a zoning change on a property located at 609 
East 6th Avenue. Mr. Jarratt seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes, 0 
nays. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-57 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM OFFICE-2 DISTRICT WITH A SPECIFIC 
USE PERMIT FOR A BAIL BOND BUSINESS TO RETAIL DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.236 ACRE, WITH DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER 
TYPE AREA 7 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Michael and Kimberly McMahon, owners of the following described 
property has presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission 
and filed said petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of 
said petition and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning 
Ordinance and by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning 
Commission of the City of Belton was set for the 19th day of November, at 5:30 p.m. for 
hearing and adoption, said district being described as follows: 

 
609 E. 6th Avenue, Belton, Texas 

(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 26th day of 
November, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on tracts of land as more fully and completely described 
above, be and is hereby changed from Office-2 District with a Specific Use Permit for a Bail 
Bond Business to Retail District, in accordance with Section 21 – Retail District, and the 
Design Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.   

 
The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

1. The use of the property shall conform to the Retail Zoning District in all respects.  
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 7 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance 

 
3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11.  

 
This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of 



Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 26th day of 
November, 2019, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
26th day of November, 2019. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT "A"


	Cty Council Agenda - 112619
	City Manager's Memo - 112619
	#3A - Minutes - Joint CC/P&ZC Meeting - 111219
	#3B - Minutes - City Council Meeting 111219
	#4 - SR - Heritage Park Grant
	#5 - SR - Bail Bond Zone Change



